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From: Silk, Jennie <jsilk@bakerdonelson.com>
Sent: Friday, July 12, 2019 4:41 PM
To: Edward L. Stanton III
Cc: Shanell Tyler; Will Perry; Glover, R. Mark; Tullis, Mary Wu; McMullen, Bruce; McMullen, Bruce
Subject: Search terms for Nathan Bedford Forrest Birthday Rally and Confirming Use of Cameras at Rally 

Tonight

Hi Ed, 
 
As we discussed on the call today, a rally is planned this weekend to celebrate Nathan Bedford Forrest's 
birthday, which is tomorrow July 13. You instructed the City to send you the search terms that MPD needs to 
search on social media in order to adequately prepare for this event. Here is the list: 

Confederate 
NBF 
Forrest 
July 13 
July 13, 1821 
October 29 
October 29, 1877 
Statue 
December 20, 2017 
Sons of the Confederacy 
SOC 
Nathan Bedford Forrest 
Friends of Nathan Bedford Forrest 
Confederate901 
Confederate 901 
Taking Our Country Back 
Hiwayman Operation Home Front 
highwaymen 
Rollin Memphis 
KKK 
Ku Klux Klan 
Grand Wizard 
Health Sciences Park 
Lee Millar 
Calvary General 
Battle of Fort Pillow 
Battle of Shiloh 
Confederate Hero 
Battle of Fort Donelson  
Battle of Tupelo 
KKK 
Billy Roper  
Shield Wall 
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Possible Counter protesters: 
CCC 
Coalition of Concerned Citizens 
New Black Panthers 
Antifa 

 
Please understand that we are very sensitive to the issue of the counter-protester group names listed above, 
however, the City needs to prepare for the possibility of a large counter protest that could turn violent or 
become otherwise disruptive. As you know, whenever two ideologically opposite groups converge, things could 
erupt, similar to what happened in Charlottesville, Virginia.  
 
This note also confirms that today the Monitoring team gave the City the greenlight to operate its SkyCops, 
Body Worn Cameras, and Dash Cams pursuant to the current MPD policy for each of those cameras at the rally 
planned for tonight centered on the release of journalist Manuel Duran from ICE custody. 
 
Please let us know if you have any questions or concerns. Thank you and the team for taking the time to address 
these issues on the call today. 
 
Best,

Jennie Vee Silk 
Associate 
 
Baker, Donelson, Bearman, Caldwell & Berkowitz, PC 
2000 First Tennessee Building 
165 Madison Avenue 
Memphis, TN 38103 
 
Phone 901.577.8212 
Fax 901.577.0812 
JSilk@bakerdonelson.com 
 
Baker, Donelson, Bearman, Caldwell & Berkowitz, PC represents clients across the U.S. and abroad from offices in Alabama, Florida, Georgia, 
Louisiana, Maryland, Mississippi, South Carolina, Tennessee, Texas, Virginia and Washington, D.C. 

 

 
NOTICE: This electronic mail transmission with any attachments may constitute an attorney-client communication, protected health information (PHI) or other 
confidential information that is in fact confidential, legally protected from disclosure and/or protected by the attorney-client privilege. If you are the intended 
recipient, please maintain confidentiality and be aware that forwarding this e-mail to others may result in a waiver of these protections and privileges and 
regardless electronic communications may be at times illegally accessed and viewed. If you are not the intended recipient, this e-mail is not intended for 
transmission to you, nor to be read, reviewed, used, distributed or even received by you or any other unauthorized persons. If you have received this electronic 
mail transmission in error, please double delete it from your system immediately without copying, reading or disseminating it, and notify the sender by reply e-mail, 
so that our address record can be corrected. Thank you very much.
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From: McMullen, Bruce <Bruce.McMullen1@memphistn.gov>
Sent: Friday, July 19, 2019 4:28 PM
To: Edward L. Stanton III; Will Perry; Shanell Tyler; Jim Letten
Cc: Glover, R. Mark; Jill Silk; Saleem, Zayid-mem; Tullis, Mary Wu; Sink, Jennifer
Subject: Facebook inquery about Imposter
Attachments: SKM_C45819071914390.pdf; SKM_C45819071914391.pdf; SKM_C45819071914420.pdf

Ed, Will, Jim, & Shanell,

Attached is the letter from Facebook’s Associate General Counsel, Andrea Kirkpatrick, and the subsequent emails
discussing the imposter accounts in September 2019.

Before I get to those, in October 2016, I contacted Facebook about 5 imposter accounts that were created in the
likeness of the Mayor, the Police Director, the City, and the Mayor’s wife. See attached emails I exchanged with FBI
Agent David Palmer, as well as my email to Facebook notifying them of the imposter accounts, requesting that they shut
down the accounts, and advising them that I had reached out to the US Attorney’s Office. Ultimately, we were unable to
trace the origin of the Facebook accounts, although the FBI was able to trace 2 imposter Twitter accounts to Paul
Garner.

Following the ACLU trial, MPD received a letter dated September 19, 2018 from Andrea Kirkpatrick. Initially, I thought
the letter was fake but we verified it was in fact legitimate. I contacted Ms. Kirkpatrick by email on September 25, 2018
and inquired about the imposter accounts alleged to have been created by MPD. In an email of September 26th Ms.
Kirkpatrick advised that Facebook took action on 6 accounts because they appeared to be “forensically related” to the
“Bob Smith” account, but determined 3 were authentic and 3 were disabled for being fake. She provide us with the URLs
of the three fake accounts but they were disabled.

We investigated but had no knowledge of any other imposter accounts other than “Bob Smith” which was deactivated. I
did not know what “forensically related” meant, so I inquired with our Chief IS Officer Mike Rodriguez as to its meaning
and whether he could determine the identity of the disabled Facebook accounts, including their creator (see email of
Oct 3 2018 for his response). Mr. Rodriguez could not make any determinations. We also engaged an outside Cyber
security attorney but he was also l unsuccessful.

Bruce McMullen
Chief Legal Officer/City Attorney
125 N. Main, Room 336
Memphis, Tennessee 38103
(901) 576 6614 – Office
(901) 576 6531 – Fax
bruce.mcmullen1@memphistn.gov
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From: McMullen, Bruce <Bruce.McMullen1@memphistn.gov>
Sent: Monday, July 29, 2019 9:16 AM
To: Edward L. Stanton III; Will Perry; Jim Letten; Shanell Tyler
Cc: Glover, R. Mark; Jill Silk; Tullis, Mary Wu; Sink, Jennifer
Subject: Blanchard v The City - Monitor communication

Ed, Jim, Will & Shanell,

The City is installing speed Camera in 15 locations (attached is the location map). The Cameras are similar to red light
cameras that are currently in use. The purpose of the cameras is for student safety. They will be located near 15 schools
to control traffic during early morning hours and after school. They will be activated 45 min before school starts and run
a short period after school starts and 30 min before school ends and run a short period of time after school.

The data that does not result in a ticket will be kept 90 days and the data resulting in a ticket will be kept 3 years. The
data will be held by a third party (Conduent). We will began installation in September and should have all systems live by
December 2019.

Please advise whether the usage of these cameras as described above violates the consent decree?
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From: McMullen, Bruce <Bruce.McMullen1@memphistn.gov>
Sent: Monday, August 05, 2019 2:46 PM
To: Edward L. Stanton III; Will Perry
Cc: Rallings, Director Michael; Saleem, Zayid-mem; Glover, R. Mark; Jill Silk; Tullis, Mary Wu; Sink, 

Jennifer; Fletcher, Michael; Crowe, Deputy Chief Don
Subject: Exigent circunstance request to Monitor

Importance: High

Ed,

Earlier today, a Shelby County Sheriff was involved in a fatal shooting near 201 Poplar. Almost immediately, a crowd
gathered. MPD was asked by the Sheriff’s Office to control the scene (the incident within MPD’s jurisdiction in that it
was in the City ). TBI is on the scene, since it is an officer involved shooting.

MPD is providing crowd control for public safety and has taken measures such as using bike racks to set up a perimeter.
We are requesting permission for MPD to be able to go on social media to gauge the potential response to this situation
and anticipate crowd swell. Also a concern is that there may be plans to have a larger gathering at another location, and
MPD wants to be able to be prepared in order to adequately provide public safety at that location.

Per our conversation just a few moments ago, you have authorized this request, conditioned upon keeping a log of the
search terms used.

Bruce McMullen
Chief Legal Officer/City Attorney
125 N. Main, Room 336
Memphis, Tennessee 38103
(901) 576 6614 – Office
(901) 576 6531 – Fax
bruce.mcmullen1@memphistn.gov
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From: Rallings, Director Michael <Michael.Rallings@memphistn.gov>
Sent: Monday, August 05, 2019 3:31 PM
To: Edward L. Stanton III; McMullen, Bruce; Will Perry
Cc: Saleem, Zayid-mem; Glover, R. Mark; Jill Silk; Tullis, Mary Wu; Sink, Jennifer; Fletcher, Michael; Crowe, 

Deputy Chief Don
Subject: Re: Exigent circumstance request to Monitor

The problem is that the officers are terrified to use their personal accounts and we can not force them to do so. 

The prohibition on a akternate social media account is crippling MPD and may put our citizens safety at risk. 
We need to resolve asap before we have an El Paso type incident.  

Director Michael W. Rallings 
 

Memphis Police Department 
 

170 N. Main, Suite 12-01 
 

Memphis, TN 38103 
 

Phone (901) 636-3700 
 

Fax (901 636-3502 
 

 
 

Community Outreach Program (C.O.P), a proactive initiative developed by the Memphis PoliceDepartment, to 
improve the quality of life of citizens and reduce juvenile violence, utilizing crime prevention techniques through 
identification, enforcement and education within the community. 
 

 
 

NOTICE: This e-mail and any files transmitted with it may contain information that is privileged and 
confidential, and is intended solely for the use of the individuals or entities to whom addressed. If you have 
received this transmission in error, please notify the sender immediately by telephone or e-mail and delete this 
e-mail from your system. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that reviewing, 
disclosing, copying, distributing or taking any action in reliance on the contents herein is strictly prohibited. Any 
attempts to intercept this message are in violation of Title 18 U. S. C. 2511(1) of the Electronic 
Communications Privacy Act (EPCA). Violators are subject to fines, imprisonment, civil damages, or both.  
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From: Edward L. Stanton III
Sent:Monday, August 5, 2019 2:54:06 PM
To:McMullen, Bruce ; Will Perry
Cc: Rallings, Director Michael ; Saleem, Zayid mem ; Glover, R. Mark ; Jill Silk ; Tullis, Mary Wu ; Sink, Jennifer ; Fletcher,
Michael ; Crowe, Deputy Chief Don
Subject: RE: Exigent circumstance request to Monitor
Bruce –

Confirmed.

ELS

Edward L. Stanton III
Butler Snow LLP

D: (901) 680 7369 | F: (901) 680 7201
6075 Poplar Avenue, Suite 500, Memphis, TN 38119
P.O. Box 171443, Memphis, TN 38187 1443
Edward.Stanton@butlersnow.com| vCard | Bio

Twitter | LinkedIn | Facebook | YouTube

From:McMullen, Bruce [mailto:Bruce.McMullen1@memphistn.gov]
Sent:Monday, August 05, 2019 2:46 PM
To: Edward L. Stanton III; Will Perry
Cc: Rallings, Director Michael; Saleem, Zayid mem; Glover, R. Mark; Jill Silk; Tullis, Mary Wu; Sink, Jennifer; Fletcher,
Michael; Crowe, Deputy Chief Don
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

Case 2:17-cv-02120-JPM-jay   Document 227-4   Filed 09/25/19   Page 39 of 48    PageID
 7863



3

(901) 576 6614 – Office
(901) 576 6531 – Fax
bruce.mcmullen1@memphistn.gov

 
CONFIDENTIALITY NOTE: This e-mail and any attachments may be confidential and protected by legal privilege. If you 
are not the intended recipient, be aware that any disclosure, copying, distribution or use of the e-mail or any attachment is 
prohibited. If you have received this e-mail in error, please notify us immediately by replying to the sender and deleting 
this copy and the reply from your system. Thank you for your cooperation.
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From: Edward L. Stanton III
Sent: Monday, August 05, 2019 4:07 PM
To: 'Rallings, Director Michael'; McMullen, Bruce; Will Perry
Cc: Saleem, Zayid-mem; Glover, R. Mark; Jill Silk; Tullis, Mary Wu; Sink, Jennifer; Fletcher, Michael; Crowe, 

Deputy Chief Don
Subject: RE: Exigent circumstance request to Monitor

Director Rallings –

Thank you for sharing this concern. Please tell your officers that they may use their personal devices and social media
accounts but that any such use will be subject to the same auditing and reporting requirements that apply to official
MPD devices and accounts. We recognize that MPD has a critical public safety function. The purpose of my team is not
to interfere with or inhibit that function but to help guide it, consistent with the parameters that Judge McCalla has
identified. As long as your officers report their social media use as we have requested, the Monitoring Team will be able
to proceed according to the court’s instructions.

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
 

From: Rallings, Director Michael [mailto:Michael.Rallings@memphistn.gov]  
Sent: Monday, August 05, 2019 3:31 PM 
To: Edward L. Stanton III; McMullen, Bruce; Will Perry 
Cc: Saleem, Zayid-mem; Glover, R. Mark; Jill Silk; Tullis, Mary Wu; Sink, Jennifer; Fletcher, Michael; Crowe, Deputy Chief 
Don 
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

From: McMullen, Bruce [mailto:Bruce.McMullen1@memphistn.gov]  
Sent: Monday, August 05, 2019 2:46 PM 
To: Edward L. Stanton III; Will Perry 
Cc: Rallings, Director Michael; Saleem, Zayid-mem; Glover, R. Mark; Jill Silk; Tullis, Mary Wu; Sink, Jennifer; Fletcher, 
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
(901) 576-6614 – Office 
(901) 576-6531 – Fax 
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
Sent: Thursday, August 22, 2019 2:15 PM
To: Edward L. Stanton III; Will Perry; Shanell Tyler; Jim Letten
Cc: Glover, R. Mark; Jill Silk; Tullis, Mary Wu; Sink, Jennifer
Subject: Approval requested

Importance: High

Ed,

We are continuing to review your letter of August 12, 2019. I wanted to email you immediately to discuss clarification of
your response to our Scenario #10 regarding security procedures for entering City Hall. Because your response would
result in a massive operational change, and change in how we assess threats to employees (i.e., disgruntled former
employees or someone under a restraining order), we wanted to make sure we were 100% clear on the directions for
new security procedures or approach for persons entering City Hall and that you and the Court deem permissible under
the Consent Decree.

Consequently, until we can get some clarity from the Court (and I would like to bring it up Tuesday because this is so
critical), we plan to advise the City Hall security team to first ask persons where they intend to go when they enter City
Hall. If they advise that they are going to pay their taxes on the 3rd Floor or to attend City Council events open to the
public, we will not require those individuals to show ID or sign in on the desk log. If individuals advise that they are
visiting any other area, we will ask them to show ID and sign in on the desk log, and we will make a visitor’s badge so
that employees are aware that a non employee is in the restricted area. The photo will be retained until after court on
Tuesday. Please confirm if that is acceptable until we can get further clarification from the Court on Tuesday.

Finally, with respect to 170 Main which houses MPD, parts of HR, Legal and the sex offender registry office, we will
continue to require the visitors state their business and produce their identification, and we will produce a photo badge
and maintain the information for security purposes.

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
Sent: Friday, August 23, 2019 3:42 PM
To: Edward L. Stanton III; Will Perry; Shanell Tyler
Cc: mglover@bakerdonelson.com; Jill Silk; mtullis@bakerdonelson.com; Sink, Jennifer; Saleem, Zayid-

mem
Subject: Request for Approval

Ed,

As you are aware, MPD uses an information/evidence gathering entity called "Crime Stoppers." When a crime is
committed, there is usually a marketing campaign for anyone with any information to call a number and provide that
information. The caller can remain anonymous or give personal information for follow up so that they can collect the
cash reward. Crime Stoppers is a standalone entity that is separate from MPD; however, the information is transmitted
to MPD.

MPD has no way of verifying how the caller got his/her intel and certainly have no way of knowing whether the caller is
trained on the consent decree or whether they used methods not allowed by the consent decree. Can MPD receive
information from Crime Stoppers?

Sent from my iPhone
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